
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
BEFORE THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD 

REGION 19 

THE BOEING COMPANY 

and 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 
DISTRICT LODGE 751, affiliated with 
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

Case 19-CA-32431 

COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF HEARING 

International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers District 

Lodge No. 751 ("Local 751" or the "Union"), affiliated with International Association of 

Machinists and Aerospace Workers ("IAM"), has charged in Case 19-CA-32431 that 

The Boeing Company ("Respondent" or "Boeing"), has been engaging in unfair labor 

practices as set forth in the National Labor Relations Act (the "Act"), 29 U.S.C. § 151 et 

seq. 

Based thereon, the Acting General Counsel of the National Labor 

Relations Board (the "Board"), by the undersigned, pursuant to § 10(b) of the Act and 

§ 102.15 of the Board's Rules and Regulations, issues this Complaint and Notice of 

Hearing and alleges as follows: 

1. 

The Charge was filed by the Union on March 26, 2010, and was served on 

Respondent by regular mail on or about March 29, 2010. 



2. 

(a) Respondent, a State of Delaware corporation with its headquarters 

in Chicago, Illinois, manufactures and produces military and commercial aircraft at 

various facilities throughout the United States, including in Everett, Washington (the 

"facility"), and others in the Seattle, Washington, and Portland, Oregon, metropolitan 

areas. 

(b) Respondent, during the past twelve months, which period is 

representative of all material times, in conducting its business operations described 

above in paragraph 2(a), derived gross revenues in excess of $500,000. 

(c) Respondent, during the past twelve months, which period is 

representative of all material times, in conducting its business operations described 

above in paragraph 2(a), both sold and shipped from, and purchased and received at, 

the facility goods valued in excess of $50,000 directly to and from points outside the 

State of Washington. 

(d) Respondent has been at all material times an employer engaged in 

commerce within the meaning of§§ 2(2), (6) and (7) of the Act. 

3. 

The Union is, and has been at all material times, a labor organization 

within the meaning of§ 2(5) of the Act. 

4. 

At all material times the following individuals held the positions set forth 

opposite their respective names and have been supervisors within the meaning of 
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§ 2(11) of the Act, and/or agents within the meaning of § 2(13) of the Act, acting on 

behalf of Respondent: 

Jim Albaugh 

Scott Carson 

Ray Conner 

Scott Fancher 

Fred Kiga 

Doug Kight 

Jim McNerney 

Jim Proulx 

Pat Shanahan 

Gene Woloshyn 

Executive Vice President, Boeing; President 
and CEO of Integrated Defense Systems (until 
late August 2009); CEO, Boeing Commercial 
Airplanes (as of late August 2009) 

Executive Vice President, Boeing; CEO, Boeing 
Commercial Airplanes (until late August 2009) 

Vice President and General Manager of Supply 
Chain Management and Operations, Boeing 
Commercial Airplanes 

Vice President and General Manager of the 787 
Program 

Vice President, Government and Community 
Relations 

Vice President, Human Resources, Boeing 
Commercial Airplanes 

President, Chairman, and CEO 

Boeing spokesman 

Vice President and General Manager of 
Airplane Programs 

Vice President, Employee Relations 

5. 

(a) Those employees of Respondent enumerated in Section 1.1 (a) of 

the collective bargaining agreement described below in paragraph 5(c), including, inter 

alia, all production and maintenance employees in Washington State, constitute a unit 

appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of§ 9(b) of the 

Act (the "Puget Sound Unit"). 

(b) Those employees of Respondent enumerated in Section 1.1 (c) of 

the collective bargaining agreement described below in paragraph 5(c), including, inter 
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alia, all production and maintenance employees in the Portland, Oregon area, constitute 

a unit appropriate for the purposes of collective bargaining within the meaning of§ 9(b) 

of the Act (the "Portland Unit"). 

(c) Since at least 1975 and at all material times, the IAM has been the 

designated exclusive collective bargaining representative of the Puget Sound Unit and 

the Portland Unit (collectively, the "Unit") and recognized as such representative by 

Respondent. This recognition has been embodied in successive collective-bargaining 

agreements, the most recent of which is effective from November 2, 2008, to 

September 8, 2012. 

(d) Since 1975, during the course of the parties' collective-bargaining 

relationship, the IAM engaged in strikes in 1977, 1989, 1995, 2005, and 2008. 

6. 

On or about the dates and by the manner noted below, Respondent made 

coercive statements to its employees that it would remove or had removed work from 

the Unit because employees had struck and Respondent threatened or impliedly 

threatened that the Unit would lose additional work in the event of future strikes: 

(a) October 21, 2009, by McNerney in a quarterly earnings conference 

call that was posted on Boeing's intranet website for all employees and reported in the 

Seattle Post Intelligencer Aerospace News and quoted in the Seattle Times, made an 

extended statement regarding "diversifying [Respondent's] labor pool and labor 

relationship," and moving the 787 Dreamliner work to South Carolina due to "strikes 

happening every three to four years in Puget Sound." 
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(b) October 28, 2009, based on its October 28, 2009, memorandum 

entitled "787 Second Line, Questions and Answers for Managers," informed employees, 

among other things, that its decision to locate the second 787 Dreamliner line in South 

Carolina was made in order to reduce Respondent's vulnerability to delivery disruptions 

caused by work stoppages. 

(c) December 7, 2009, by Conner and Proulx in an article appearing in 

the Seattle Times, attributed Respondent's 787 Dreamliner production decision to use a 

"dual-sourcing" system and to contract with separate suppliers for the South Carolina 

line to past Unit strikes. 

(d) December 8, 2009, by Conner in an article appearing in the Puget 

Sound Business Journal, attributed Respondent's 787 Dreamliner production decision 

to use a "dual-sourcing" system and to contract with separate suppliers for the South 

Carolina line to past Unit strikes. 

(e) March 2, 2010, by Albaugh in a video-taped interview with a Seattle 

Times reporter, stated that Respondent decided to locate its 787 Dreamliner second line 

in South Carolina because of past Unit strikes, and threatened the loss of future Unit 

work opportunities because of such strikes. 

7. 

(a) In or about October 2009, on a date better known to Respondent, 

but no later than October 28, 2009, Respondent decided to transfer its second 787 

Dreamliner production line of 3 planes per month from the Unit to its non-union site in 

North Charleston, South Carolina. 
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(b) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in paragraph 

7(a) because the Unit employees assisted and/or supported the Union by, inter a/ia, 

engaging in the protected, concerted activity of lawful strikes and to discourage these 

and/or other employees from engaging in these or other union and/or protected, 

concerted activities. 

(c) Respondent's conduct described above in paragraph 7(a), 

combined with the conduct described above in paragraph 6, is also inherently 

destructive of the rights guaranteed employees by § 7 of the Act. 

8. 

(a) In or about October 2009, on a date better known to Respondent, 

but no later than December 3, 2009, Respondent decided to transfer a sourcing supply 

program for its 787 Dreamliner production line from the Unit to its non-union facility in 

North Charleston, South Carolina, or to subcontractors. 

(b) Respondent engaged in the conduct described above in paragraph 

8(a) because the Unit employees assisted and/or supported the Union by, inter alia, 

engaging in the protected, concerted activity of lawful strikes and to discourage these 

and/or other employees from engaging in these or other union and/or protected, 

concerted activities. 

(c) Respondent's conduct described above in paragraph 8(a), 

combined with the conduct described above in paragraphs 6 and 7(a), is also inherently 

destructive of the rights guaranteed employees by § 7 of the Act. 
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9. 

By the conduct described above in paragraph 6, Respondent has been 

interfering with, restraining, and coercing employees in the exercise of the rights 

guaranteed in § 7 of the Act in violation of§ 8(a)(1) of the Act. 

10. 

By the conduct described above in paragraphs 7 and 8, Respondent has 

been discriminating in regard to the hire or tenure or terms or conditions of employment 

of its employees, thereby discouraging membership in a labor organization in violation 

of§§ 8(a)(3) and (1) of the Act. 

11. 

By the conduct described above in paragraphs 6 through 10, Respondent 

has engaged in unfair labor practices affecting commerce within the meaning of §§ 2(6) 

and (7) of the Act. 

12. 

As part of the remedy for the unfair labor practices alleged herein, the 

Acting General Counsel seeks an Order requiring either that one of the high level 

officials of Respondent alleged to have committed the violations enumerated above in 

paragraph 6 read, or that a designated Board agent read in the presence of a high level 

Boeing official, any notice that issues in this matter, and requiring Respondent to 

broadcast such reading on Respondent's intranet to all employees. 

13. 

(a) As part of the remedy for the unfair labor practices alleged above in 

paragraphs 7 and 8, the Acting General Counsel seeks an Order requiring Respondent 
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to have the Unit operate its second line of 787 Dreamliner aircraft assembly production 

in the State of Washington, utilizing supply lines maintained by the Unit in the Seattle, 

Washington, and Portland, Oregon, area facilities. 

(b) Other than as set forth in paragraph 13(a) above, the relief 

requested by the Acting General Counsel does not seek to prohibit Respondent from 

making non-discriminatory decisions with respect to where work will be performed, 

including non-discriminatory decisions with respect to work at its North Charleston, 

South Carolina, facility. 

ANSWER REQUIREMENT 

Respondent is notified that, pursuant to §§ 102.20 and 102.21 of the 

Board's Rules and Regulations, it must file an answer to this Complaint. The answer 

must be received by this office on or before May 4, 2011, or postmarked on or 

before May 3, 2011. Unless filed electronically in a pdf format, Respondent should file 

an original and four copies of the answer with this office and serve a copy of the answer 

on each of the other parties. 

An answer may also be filed electronically by using the E-Filing system on 

the Agency's website. In order to file an answer electronically, access the Agency's 

website at www.nlrb.gov, click on File Case Documents, enter the NLRB Case 

Number, and follow the detailed instructions. The responsibility for the receipt and 

usability of the answer rests exclusively upon the sender. Unless notification on the 

Agency's website informs users that the Agency's E-Filing system is officially 

determined to be in technical failure because it is unable to receive documents for a 

continuous period of more than 2 hours after 12:00 noon (Eastern Time) on the due 
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date for filing, a failure to timely file the answer will not be excused on the basis that the 

transmission could not be accomplished because the Agency's website was off-line or 

unavailable for some other reason. The Board's Rules and Regulations require that an 

answer be signed by counsel or non-attorney representative for represented parties or 

by the party if not represented. See§ 102.21. If the answer being filed electronically is 

a pdf document containing the required signature, no paper copies of the document 

need to be transmitted to the Regional Office. However, if the electronic version of an 

answer to a complaint is not a pdf file containing the required signature, then the E-filing 

rules require that such answer containing the required signature be submitted to the 

Regional Office by traditional means within three (3) business days after the date of 

electronic filing. 

Service of the answer on each of the other parties must be accomplished 

in conformance with the requirements of § 102.114 of the Board's Rules and 

Regulations. The answer may not be filed by facsimile transmission. If no answer is 

filed or if an answer is filed untimely, the Board may find, pursuant to Motion for Default 

Judgment, that the allegations in this Complaint are true. 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on the 14th day of June, 2011, at 9:00 

a.m., in James C. Sand Hearing Room, 2966 Jackson Federal Building, 915 

Second Avenue, Seattle, Washington, and on consecutive days thereafter until 

concluded, a hearing will be conducted before an Administrative Law Judge of the 

National Labor Relations Board. At the hearing, Respondent and any other party to this 

proceeding have the right to appear and present testimony regarding the allegations in 
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this complaint. The procedures to be followed at the hearing are described in the 

attached Form NLRB-4668. The procedure to request a postponement of the hearing is 

described in the attached Form NLRB-4338. 

DATED at Seattle, Washington, this 20th day of April, 2011. 

Richard L. Ahearn, Regional Director 
National Labor Relations Board, Region 19 
2948 Jackson Federal Building 
915 Second Avenue 
Seattle, Washington 98174-1078 
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